
PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 

NOVEMBER 10, 2015 AT 6:30 PM 

CORDOVA CENTER COMMUNITY ROOMS A & B 

 

AGENDA 

If you have a disability that makes it difficult to attend City-sponsored functions, you may contact 424-6200 for assistance. 

Full Planning Commission agendas and packets are available online at www.cityofcordova.net. 

 

    

      

 

 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

2. ROLL CALL 

Chairman John Greenwood, Commissioners Tom Bailer, Tom McGann, 

Scott Pegau, John Baenen, Allen Roemhildt, and Mark Frohnapfel 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (voice vote) 

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR (voice vote) 

a. Minutes of October 13, 2015 Regular Meeting ............................................................................... Page 2-4 

b. Record excused absences for Mark Frohnapfel and John Greenwood from the October 13,  

2015 Regular Meeting 

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

6. CORRESPONDENCE 

a. State of Alaska DOT Public Notice ................................................................................................. Page 5-6 

b. State of Alaska DOT Public Notice ................................................................................................. Page 7-8 

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS 

a. Guest Speakers 

i. Kate Morse – Copper River Watershed Project 

b. Audience comments regarding agenda items (3 minutes per speaker) 

8. PLANNER’S REPORT ....................................................................................................................... Page 9 

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 

a. Discussion on Disposal of Library/Museum Land and Building ..................................................... Page 10-19 

10. PENDING CALENDAR 

a. November 2015 Calendar ................................................................................................................ Page 20 

b. December 2015 Calendar ................................................................................................................. Page 21 

11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 

12. COMMISSION COMMENTS 

13. ADJOURNMENT 

Chairman 

John Greenwood 
 

Commissioners 

Tom Bailer 

Tom McGann 

Scott Pegau 

John Baenen 

Allen Roemhildt 

Mark Frohnapfel 
 

City Planner 

Samantha Greenwood 
 

Assistant Planner 

Leif Stavig 



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

October 13, 2015

Page 1 of 3

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

OCTOBER 13, 2015 AT 6:30 PM

LIBRARY MEETING ROOM

MINUTES

1. CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chairman Tom Bailer called the Planning Commission Regular Meeting to order at 6:30 PM on October 13, 

2015 in the Library Meeting Room.

2. ROLL CALL

Present for roll call were Co-Chairman Tom Bailer and Commissioners Tom McGann, Scott Pegau, John 

Baenen, and Allen Roemhildt. Commissioners John Greenwood and Mark Frohnapfel were absent.

Also present were City Planner, Samantha Greenwood, and Assistant Planner, Leif Stavig.

1 person was in the audience.

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

M/McGann S/Baenen to approve the agenda.

Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-0.

Yea: Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt

Absent: Greenwood, Frohnapfel

4. APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR

a. Minutes of September 8, 2015 Public Hearing

b. Minutes of September 8, 2015 Regular Meeting

M/Pegau S/McGann to approve the consent calendar.

Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-0.

Yea: Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt

Absent: Greenwood, Frohnapfel

5. DISCLOSURES OF CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

6. CORRESPONDENCE

a. State of Alaska DOT Public Notice

7. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS

a. Audience comments regarding agenda items

Robert Beedle spoke to item 9(a). He said that they have never talked about any specific way of getting rid 

of City Hall and the office spaces. He has been pushing for getting rid of the Library/Museum and the City 

Hall building due to disrepair. They have talked about the Troopers renting it, but then the City would have 

tenants. 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

2 of 21



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

October 13, 2015

Page 2 of 3

8. PLANNER’S REPORT

Baenen asked what the correspondence was about. S. Greenwood said that she did not know and that it was a 

public notice with contact information.

Bailer asked if staff had looked into a building permit he had a question about. S. Greenwood said that they had 

sent out a letter. Baenen asked if someone needed a building permit for fill or for maintenance. S. Greenwood 

said not for fill, but it is required for structural alterations. Baenen said he didn’t think it needed a permit. Bailer 

said at one point there was a dollar amount that if you went over you had to get a permit.

McGann asked about the Crater Lake project. S. Greenwood said that they are at the point where they are looking 

at three different impoundment heights. They have done a preliminary geologic report. They are having biweekly 

conference calls. The due date for the feasibility study is December.

S. Greenwood clarified that the only two commissioners interested in going to the Planning Commissioner 

training in Anchorage were Frohnapfel and Baenen. Roemhildt and Pegau said they were both interested, but 

had prior commitments.

9. NEW/MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS

a. Disposal of a Portion of Office Space in City Hall Building

M/Baenen S/McGann to recommend to City Council to remove the existing office portion of the old City 

Hall.

McGann said that he doesn’t see any demand for office space. One benefit would be additional parking 

spaces for the Cordova Center. Baenen said that if the City started to rent office space, there is a good chance 

they would take business from the private sector. The City could possibly take somebody from a location 

they are already renting. The original intent of the Cordova Center was to get rid of the old buildings. He 

overheard a conversation about the old City Hall building and heard someone say they were getting rid of it. 

It is better to just cut off half of the building and move the boiler over. It may cost a little, but at least they 

are not putting more money into it and they are not in direct competition with a local business. Roemhildt, 

Pegau, and Bailer said they agreed. 

Upon voice vote, motion passed 5-0.

Yea: Bailer, McGann, Pegau, Baenen, Roemhildt

Absent: Greenwood, Frohnapfel

10. PENDING CALENDAR

S. Greenwood said that they think they will have the next meeting in the new building. Bailer asked how packets 

can get picked up. Stavig said they are still figuring that out and asked the commission how they felt about having 

24/7 access to their packets. There was a mixed response from the commission.

Bailer said that the City Council put out an RFP for the Library/Museum building, but he still feels like the 

commission should be looking at it. Unless the commission is comfortable waiting for the proposals to come in, 

they could have a discussion about what they wanted. Pegau said he was anticipating that discussion, but the 

City Council moved to put out the RFP. He would still like to have the discussion, but he is not sure how 

productive it would be. Hopefully, if things go properly proposals will still go through the commission, so if they 

have that discussion prior to reviewing proposals they will have a much better feeling. Bailer’s thought was that 

it is one more public hearing where people could let you know what they would like to see. Stavig said for the 

rest of the commission’s information that City Council directed staff to release an RFP for the property. Bailer 

said it was an RFP for whatever anyone wanted to do. S. Greenwood said that the proposals will come to the 

Planning Commission first. 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

3 of 21



Planning Commission Regular Meeting - Minutes

October 13, 2015

Page 3 of 3

11. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

Beedle said in reading the Planner’s Report, he suggests doing a title search first in the disposal process.

12. COMMISSION COMMENTS

Pegau wanted to make a comment about Trident North. He was really happy to see that with their new bunkhouse, 

they used all of the parking. He knew there was some resistance to additional parking requirements. The decision 

to require that parking had value.

Baenen said he thought it was a good meeting and that it was interesting to see that they were all on the same 

page on the City Hall building.

McGann wanted to know the status of recent land sales. S. Greenwood said the Performance Deed of Trust for 

Nichols expires in two and a half years. Council extended the Performance Deeds of Trust for Roemhildts for 

another year. Camtus was five and they are half way through. Harborside is in progress. Leo Americus will be 

coming up soon. Mobile Grid just started. There has been some back-and-forth with Ocean Beauty.

Roemhildt thanked Beedle for coming.

13. ADJOURNMENT

M/McGann S/Pegau to adjourn the Regular Meeting at 7:02 PM.

With no objection, the meeting was adjourned.

Approved:

____________________________

John Greenwood, Chair

____________________________

Leif Stavig, Assistant Planner 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

4 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

5 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

6 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

7 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

8 of 21



Planner’s Report
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 11/5/2015

Re: Recent Activities and Updates

 Two building permits issued since the last meeting.

 Museum/Library building RFP is out.

 Property disposal – 

o Hanson’s waiting signing

o Arvidson complete

o Breakwater fill lot 30 day waiting period. Petition has been created and is due November 7th

 Provided information and participated in meeting with Engineer for feasibility study for Crater Lake 

for Hydro and City water source. 

 Working on budget for 2016

 Code research for public nuisance 

 FOAI request research 

 Training for transition from staff to management and project management in November

 Assisting Public works Director with Meals safety Dam report and hiring 

 Working with State, Dawson and others on LT2.  

 All Flat files scanned & working building permits

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

9 of 21



Discussion on Disposal of Library/Museum Land and Building

Page 1 of 1

Memorandum
To: Planning Commission

From: Planning Staff

Date: 11/5/15

Re: Discussion on Disposal of Library/Museum Land and Building

PART I – GENERAL INFORMATION

At the last Regular Meeting, the commission requested to have a discussion on the Library/Museum land 

and building prior to receiving proposals. Attached after this memo is the Request for Proposals that was 

released several weeks ago. The lease with option to purchase has been removed to decrease the packet 

size. The RFP is available on the City’s Webpage or at City Hall.

Proposals are due December 1st and the commission will give City Council a recommendation at the next 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

10 of 21



Page 1 of 3

Request for Proposals for the Existing 

Library/Museum Land and/or Building

“Opportunity knocks only once. You never know if you’ll get another opportunity.” 

(Leon Spinks, American Heavyweight Boxer)

The City of Cordova has a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity. We are looking for the right person, business, or 

organization with the vision and abilities to acquire and develop a prime piece of commercial property on 

Cordova’s Main Street, directly across from the new Cordova Center. City Council has asked staff to take 

virtually all offers for the site, the former home of the City’s Museum, Library, and community meeting room.  

The configuration could be all or any combinations of lots, with or without the buildings. Think creatively and 

act boldly for this unique chance.

SEALED PROPOSAL FORM

All proposals must be received by the City Manager by Tuesday, December 1st, 2015 at 5 PM.

Property: Lots 12-18, Block 6, Original Townsite and/or the improvements thereon. This does not include the 

parking/snow dump area behind the library and museum. See attached map. 

Name of Proposer: _____________________________________________________________

Name of Organization: _____________________________________________________________

Address: _________________________________ Phone #: ____________________

 _________________________________ Email: _________________________

_________________________________ 

Proposed Price: $____________________

The City will consider any and all proposals for the property subject to any applicable laws and 

regulations, including Chapter 5.22 of the Cordova Municipal Code (CMC).

All submitted proposals for the building will be reviewed by the Planning Commission. The Planning 

Commission will then recommend a proposal to City Council for final review and acceptance.

The City Council reserves the right to reject any proposal, part of any proposal, or all proposals. The 

City Council may accept and negotiate with any proposal deemed most advantageous to the City of 

Cordova.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

11 of 21



Page 2 of 3

In accordance with the City Code, we must announce that the fair market value for the Library/Museum 

building is $45,000.00 and the fair market value for each of the seven 2,500 sq. ft. lots is $24,021.00. The fair 

market value will be the minimum price that will be accepted unless the applicant meets the requirements of 

CMC Section 5.22.070. If the successful proposal amount is greater than the minimum price, the proposal 

amount shall be the amount paid for the building. 

A purchase agreement for the building will be negotiated with the winning proposer if the building is to be 

relocated. The winning proposer will be required to obtain a performance bond in the amount of the proposed 

price. Applicants are encouraged to contact Weston Bennett, Facilities Superintendent, to review the building 

plans, arrange a site visit, and request more information on what is to be included with the purchase.

The attached Lease with Option to Purchase is a template for the agreement that will be negotiated with the 

proposal that is awarded the land with or without the existing building. The annual lease rate will be 10% of the 

proposed price.

All proposals shall include a deposit of $1,000.00. In the event that a proposal is not awarded the property, the 

City will reimburse the deposit to the proposer. The deposit will be credited to costs associated with the contract 

preparation.

The applicant shall also be responsible for all fees and costs the City incurred to third-parties in the transaction,

including without limitation costs of appraisal, attorney’s fees and costs, surveying and platting fees and costs,

closing costs and escrow fees as per CMC 5.22.100. 

The estimated vacancy date of the property is 1/1/16, however this date is subject to change. 

Please review the attached section of Code for the permitted uses within the Central Business District.

The City may issue addenda to this RFP. Addenda will be posted on the City Webpage with this RFP. It is the 

responsibility of the proposer to ensure receipt of all addenda.

For questions or more information about the land disposal process, contact the City Planning Department at 

424-6220, planning2@cityofcordova.net, or stop by in person.

Additional Information Required (please attach separately with this proposal form):

1. Describe the development you’re proposing.

2. What is the proposed square footage of the development? 

3. Provide a sketch, to scale, of the proposed development in relationship to the lot. (Attachment C)

4. What is the benefit of the proposed development to the community?

5. What is the value of the proposed improvements (in dollars)?

6. What is your proposed timeline for development?

Included for your convenience:

Attachment A: Criteria used when evaluating each submitted proposal.

Attachment B: A location map showing the subject property with a scale.

Attachment C: The property parcels without aerial image.

Attachment D: Cordova Municipal Code – Central Business District

Attachment E: Sample Lease with Option to Purchase Agreement 

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

12 of 21



Page 3 of 3

Please mail proposals to: City of Cordova

Attn: City Manager

C/O Proposals

P.O. Box 1210

Cordova, Alaska  99574

Or email proposals to citymanager@cityofcordova.net and planning2@cityofcordova.net. The email 

subject line shall be “Proposal for Library/Museum Property,” and the proposal shall be attached to the 

email as a PDF file.

Or deliver your proposal to the front desk at City Hall.

Proposals received after Tuesday, December 1st, 2015 at 5 PM will not be considered.

Think of the opportunities . . . prime property along Cordova’s historic and expanding Main 

Street!  Submit your proposal by 1 December.

PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

13 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

14 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

15 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

16 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

17 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

18 of 21



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING

NOVEMBER 10, 2015

19 of 21



 11/4/2015 3:22 PM

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5 6 7
8 9 10 11 12 13 14

15 16 17 18 19 20 21
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

November 2015

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

December 2015
November 2015

Nov 1 2 3 4 5 6 7

7:00pm City Council 

Regular (CC Comm. 

Rooms A & B)

8 9 10 11 12 13 14

6:30pm Planning 

Commission Regular 

(CC Comm. Rooms A & 

B)

City Closed - Veteran's Day

7:00pm Harbor 

Commission Regular 

(CC Comm. Room B)
7:00pm School Board 

Regular (High School)

6:30pm Planning 

Commission Work 

Session (CC Education 

Room)

15 16 17 18 19 20 21

7:00pm City Council 

Regular (Library)

22 23 24 25 26 27 28

6:00pm Parks and Rec. 

Commission Regular 

Meeting (CC Comm. 

Room B)

City Closed - Thanksgiving City Closed - Thanksgiving

29 30 Dec 1 2 3 4 5

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

 1
0
, 2

0
1
5

2
0
 o

f 2
1



 11/4/2015 3:22 PM

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2 3 4 5
6 7 8 9 10 11 12

13 14 15 16 17 18 19
20 21 22 23 24 25 26
27 28 29 30 31

December 2015

Su Mo Tu We Th Fr Sa

1 2
3 4 5 6 7 8 9

10 11 12 13 14 15 16
17 18 19 20 21 22 23
24 25 26 27 28 29 30
31

January 2016
December 2015

Nov 29 30 Dec 1 2 3 4 5

7:00pm City Council 

Regular (CC Comm. 

Rooms A & B)

6 7 8 9 10 11 12

6:30pm Planning 

Commission Regular 

(CC Comm. Rooms A & 

B)

7:00pm Harbor 

Commission Regular 

(CC Comm. Room B)
7:00pm School Board 

Regular (High School)

13 14 15 16 17 18 19

7:00pm City Council 

Regular (Library)

20 21 22 23 24 25 26

6:00pm Parks and Rec. 

Commission Regular 

Meeting (CC Comm. 

Room B)

City Closed - Christmas

27 28 29 30 31 Jan 1, 16 2

SUNDAY MONDAY TUESDAY WEDNESDAY THURSDAY FRIDAY SATURDAY

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 R

E
G

U
L

A
R

 M
E

E
T

IN
G

N
O

V
E

M
B

E
R

 1
0
, 2

0
1
5

2
1
 o

f 2
1


	11-10-15 Agenda
	10-13-15 Regular Meeting Minutes_0
	HP00104
	SKMBT_60115101308010
	11_10_2015 Planners Report_0
	Discussion on LibraryMuseum_0
	RFP for LibraryMuseum1
	RFP for LibraryMuseum_0
	Land Disposal CRITERIA_0
	Zoomout
	Zoomin
	Drawing
	Chapter_18.29___CENTRAL_BUSINESS_DISTRICT (1)_0
	LeaseWithOptionToPurchase_0

	RFP for LibraryMuseum2
	Monthly Style

